
 
 
BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 
 
Michael Janz 
Board Chair  
 
Michelle Draper 
Board Vice-Chair 
 
Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 
Ken Gibson 
Sarah Hoffman 
Nathan Ip 
Cheryl Johner 
Ray Martin 
 
Johannah Ko 
Student Trustee 

 
 

Edmonton School District No. 7 
One Kingsway 

Edmonton, Alberta 
 
  McCauley Chambers 
 Board Meeting #15  Tuesday, May 19, 2015 
    2:00 p.m. 

 
A.  O Canada   
  
B.  Roll Call 
  
C.  Approval of the Agenda 
  
D.  Communications from the Board Chair 

  
E.  Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 

  
F.  Minutes: 

  
 1.  DRAFT – Board Meeting – April 28, 2015 
   
 2.  DRAFT – Board Meeting #14 – May 5, 2015 
  

G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] is required by 
10:00 a.m. – Tuesday, May 19, 2015 to speak under this item.)  

  
H.  Reports: 

   
 3.  Report #11 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meetings Held April 21, 

May 5 and May 12, 2015) 
(Information) 

   
 4.  Presentation re Centre for Global Education 

(Information – 10-minute Presentation) 
   
 5.  Locally Developed Courses 

(Recommendation) 
   
 6.  Standardized School Designs Within the Context of Approved Provincial 

Designs 
(Information – Response to Request for Information #089) 

   
 7.  Immunization and Vaccination of District Students 

(Information – Response to Request for Information #096) 
   
 8.  Bereavement 

(Information) 
 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
- 2 - 

 
 

I.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] is required by  
10:00 a.m. – Tuesday, May 19, 2015 to speak under this item.) 

  
J.  Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 

   
 9.  Student Trustee Update 
  

K.  Trustee and Board Requests for Information 
  

L.  Notices of Motion 
  

M.  Meeting Dates 
  

N.  Adjournment 
 

Page 2 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
Board Meeting  

 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the 
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on Tuesday, 
April 28, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

 Trustees 
 

 

Sherry Adams 
Michelle Draper 

Ken Gibson 

Nathan Ip 
Michael Janz 

Cheryl Johner 
Ray Martin 

  
Student Trustee 

 

 

 Johannah Ko  
  

Officials 
 

 

Angela Anderson 
Lisa Austin 
Diana Bolan 

Todd Burnstad 
 

Candace Cole 
Jim Davies 

Ron MacNeil 
Mary Michailides 

Kathy Muhlethaler 
Lorne Parker 

Darrel Robertson 
Sandra Stoddard 

Board Chair: Michael Janz  Recording Secretary:  Manon Fraser 
 
A.    O Canada    
 
Staff Group Representatives 
 
Edmonton Public Teachers – Nels Olsen, President 
CUPE Local 3550 – Carol Chapman, President 
 
B. Roll Call:  (2:00 p.m.) 
 
The Superintendent advised that Trustees Chubb and Hoffman were absent.  All other 
Trustees as well as Student Trustee Ko were present. 
 

1 
April 28, 2015 

 

Page 3 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
C. Approval of the Agenda 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Draper: 
 “That the agenda for the April 28, 2015 board meeting be approved as 

printed.”   
 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
D. Communications from the Board Chair 
 
The Board Chair noted that today, April 28th,  is the National Day of Mourning for 
Workers Injured or Killed at the Workplace.  In recognition of the men and women of our 
Province and of the District who are part of those statistics, the Edmonton Public School 
Board on April 27, 1998 proclaimed every April 28th as an annual ‘Day of Mourning’ in 
recognition of workers killed, injured or disabled on the job.  The Board encourages each 
and every one to do their part to ensure that Edmonton Public Schools’ work and learning 
environments are as healthy and safe for staff, students and community as possible 
throughout the year. 
 
E. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 
 
The Superintendent May 4 to 10, 2015 is Mental Health Week.  This nationally 
recognized campaign is an important opportunity for schools to acknowledge and 
promote the importance of positive mental health and the impact mental health and 
wellbeing have on our lives.   This is the 64th annual Mental Health Week.  The focus of 
this year’s Mental Health Week is on the mental health and well-being of men and boys 
and also, as always, encourages people from all walks of life to learn, talk, reflect and 
engage others on issues related to mental health and mental illness. 
 
Edmonton Public Schools has created a site to support teachers and schools for Mental 
Health Week and beyond.  The site includes:  lesson plans for Grades K-12, literacy lists, 
PA announcements, school-wide activities, posters and video resources.   Please note that 
the Elephant in the Room Campaign will take place on May 8th and staff and students are 
encouraged to wear their elephant stickers that day to support mental health and to stop 
the silence/stigma around mental health.  
 
 
 

2 
April 28, 2015 

 

Page 4 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
Also, the Society for Safe and Caring Schools & Communities partnered with the 
Canadian Mental Health Association Edmonton and the Alberta Teachers’ Association to 
develop an infographic poster to promote positive mental health.  Thanks to the generous 
sponsorship of the ATA, these infographics have been sent out to all public and Catholic 
schools in Alberta.    The poster notes that May 6th is Hats On! For Mental Health Day 
which asks people to wear a special hat in participating schools to raise awareness of the 
importance of good mental health.  Information about the resources available was 
published in the April 24th Need to Know News. 
 
The Superintendent noted he participated in the W.P. Wagner School Wagathon on 
April 24, 2015.  The bike-a-thon fundraiser for the District Foundation was very 
successful and he commended the students and staff for organizing the event. 
 
F.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives – None. 
 
G. Reports 
 
 1.  Distribution of Funds 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Gibson: 
 “That the Board of Trustees approve the distribution of funds for the 2015- 

2016 budget.” 
 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
There was a break at this point. 
 
 2.  Draft Board Policy AA.BP – Stakeholder Relations 
 
MOVED BY Ip: 
 “That draft Board Policy AA.BP – Stakeholder Relations be considered for 
 the first time and approved for posting on the District website for stakeholder 

input.” 
 

3 
April 28, 2015 

 

Page 5 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
Trustee Gibson requested that the Policy Review Committee review the following items 
from ATTACHMENT III – COLLABORATION AND PARTNERSHIPS to ensure they 
are reflected in the draft policy:  
• mutually benefit all partners 
• based on shared or aligned objectives that support the goals of both parties 
• ensure corporate image or business practices are not in conflict with district policies, 

values and beliefs 
• do not require an exclusive endorsement of products and services 
  
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
 3.  Motion re Council of School Councils 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Johner: 
 “That the following motion from the November 13, 2012 Board meeting not be 

approved:  That the Administration create a Council of School Councils that will 
meet with the Board twice a year and provide advice on education issues.”   

 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
H. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 
 
Trustee Gibson thanked Mr. Christopher Wright and Mr. Roland Labbe for their excellent 
presentation to the Glastonbury Community League on April 21, 2015. 
 
Trustee Draper advised that, every year, Rotary clubs have the opportunity to invite and 
honour members of their community who best exemplify Rotary values in their everyday 
lives, and this is done through the Capital Region Integrity Awards.  She attended the event 
on April 22, 2015 and noted that Vicky Mamczasz, from John D. Bracco School received 
the Rotary Integrity Award from the Rotary Club of Edmonton Northeast. Vicky supports 
student mental health and founded “Stronger Together Schools” a team of over forty  
community partners, school staff, students and parents investing in mental health.   Denise 
Hugman, a parent from M.E. LaZerte, also was a recipient of this award from the Rotary 
Club of Edmonton Riverview for her promotion of affordable music education and many 
other non-profit endeavours.  

 
4 

April 28, 2015 
 

Page 6 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

Trustee Martin visited Highlands School last week to hear about the work the school is 
doing as part of the Eastglen catchment Equity Fund Project.  The school trained twenty-
four teachers from seventeen different schools between April 20 to 22, 2015 in  
DRUMBEAT (an empirically-based group mental health intervention that uses drumming 
to address risk factors and increase resilience).  Mr. Simon Faulkner, the originator and 
trainer for the program from Australia, was in attendance to facilitate the sessions.  The 
schools involved were:  Abbott, Bannerman, Beacon Heights, Belmont, Fraser, Highlands, 
Homesteader, John D. Bracco, Kirkness, Montrose, Mount Royal, R. J. Scott and Sifton. 

 
Trustee Gibson left at this point for the duration of the meeting. 
 
Trustee Martin advised that he attended amiskwaciy Academy’s Spring Feast.  He noted 
there were approximately four hundred and twenty-five people in attendance including 
elders, Air Cadets and representatives from Edmonton Police Services. He noted Dr. Lorne 
Parker received a ceremonial blanket as a gift to honour his efforts over the years with the 
school. 

 
Trustee Adams, the Board’s representative on the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation 
Board of Governors, reported that $20,000 was raised for the Foundation in support of 
full-day kindergarten through the Ready to Shine Student Fashion Show fundraiser hosted 
by Kingsway Garden Mall on April 23, 2015.  She also reported that W.P. Wagner 
School raised $43,000 through its Wagathon fundraiser on April 24, 2015.  She 
commended all of those involved in both fundraising events. 
 
Trustee Adams noted the Ready for Life fundraising breakfast will take place, May 14, 
2015 at 7:30 p.m. at W.P. Wagner School. 
 
Trustee Johner noted she and Trustees Adams and Ip Adams were also pleased to have 
attended the Ready to Shine event.  She also noted she attended the Great Cover-Up 
fundraiser for the Archives and Museum at McKay Avenue School on April 25, 2015. 

 
Trustee Johner, the Board’s representative on Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) 
Zone 23, reported on the ASBA Zone 23 General Meeting held April 24, 2015.  The ASBA 
Board of Directors presented the proposed 2015-2016 ASBA budget which will be debated 
by the membership at the Spring General Meeting on June 1, 2015.  She noted that five 
proposed policy positions for the Fall General Meeting were brought forward including the 
proposed policy position from Edmonton Public Schools that the topic of consent be 
incorporated in the curriculum related to Sexual Education.  The proposed policy positions 
will be voted at the May 22, 2015 ASBA Zone 23 General Meeting. 
 

5 
April 28, 2015 

 

Page 7 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
I. Trustee and Board Requests for Information – None. 
 
J. Notices of Motion – None. 
 
K. Next Board Meeting Date:   Tuesday, May 5, 2015 at 2:00 p.m.  
 
L.    Adjournment (4:20 p.m.) 
 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Michael Janz, Board Chair  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director  
Governance and Strategic Support  
Services/Corporate Secretary 

       
 

6 
April 28, 2015 

 

Page 8 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
Board Meeting #14 

 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the 
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on Tuesday, 
May 5, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

 Trustees 
 

 

Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 

Michelle Draper 

Michael Janz 
Nathan Ip 

Cheryl Johner 
Ray Martin 

  
Student Trustee 

 

 

 Johannah Ko  
  

Officials 
 

 

Angela Anderson 
Candace Cole 

Jim Davies 
Lorne Parker 

Darrel Robertson 
Sandra Stoddard 

 
Board Chair: Michael Janz  Recording Secretary:  Manon Fraser 
 
A.    O Canada    
 
Staff Group Representatives 
 
CUPE Local 3550 – Carol Chapman, President 
CUPE Local 474 – Barry Benoit, President 
 
B. Roll Call:  (2:00 p.m.) 
 
The Superintendent advised that Trustees Gibson and Hoffman were absent.  All other 
Trustees including Trustee Ko were present. 
 

1 
May 5, 2015 

 

Page 9 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
C. Approval of the Agenda 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Draper: 
 “That the agenda for the May 5, 2015 board meeting be approved as 

printed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
D. Communications from the Board Chair 
 
The Board Chair thanked all School Councils, parents and individuals who raised the 
issue of education during the election – this has been very helpful and important and an 
excellent example of democratic and civic engagement.  
  
E. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 
 
The Superintendent reported that, last week, he attended the Taste of Evansdale.  He 
commended Principal Arts and her staff for organizing such a fantastic community 
celebration.  
 
F. Minutes 
 
 1.  Board Meeting #13 – April 21, 2015 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Johner: 
 “That the minutes of Board Meeting #13 held April 21, 2015 be approved as 

printed.”   (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives – None. 
 
H. Reports 
 
 2.  Report #10 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held April 7, 

2015) 
 
Information was provided regarding the actions taken at the April 7, 2015 Caucus 
Committee meeting. 
 

2 
May 5, 2015 

 

Page 10 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
 3.  Staff Group Presentation re 2015-2016 Proposed Budget 
 

• CUPE Local 474 (Custodial Staff) 
 
Mr. Barry Benoit, President CUPE Local 474, representing the District’s custodial staff, 
presented the Local’s brief. 
 
The Board Chair thanked the staff group representatives for their input and advised that a 
response to the presentations will be prepared for public board. 
 
 4.   Bereavement 
 
Vice-Chair Draper reported on the passing of Mrs. Mrs. Lillian Hampel. 
 
I. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 
 
Trustee Adams, the Board’s representative on the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation 
Board of Governors, called on Ms Tracy Poulin, Director District Foundation, to speak 
about the recent fundraiser organized by W.P. Wagner School.  
 
Ms Poulin, acknowledged the tremendous work of W.P. Wagner School in organizing the 
Wagathon fundraiser on April 24, 2015 which raised $43,000 for the District Foundation.  
She noted a Ready for Life bike, built with the help of the Communications Department, 
will be presented to the school. 
 
Trustee Adams noted the Ready for Life fundraising breakfast will take place, May 14, 
2015 at 7:30 a.m. at W.P. Wagner School. 
 
Trustee Draper noted that, as part of Mental Health Week, Get Loud for Mental Health Day 
will take place on Thursday, May 7, 2015 at the Edmonton Expo Centre.  Information about 
the event has been provided to Trustees.  She noted there will be many activities taking 
place that day for students to take part in. 
 
J. Trustee and Board Requests for Information – None. 
 
K. Notices of Motion – None. 
 
L. Next Board Meeting Date:   Tuesday, May 19, 2015 at 2:00 p.m.  
 
 

3 
May 5, 2015 

 

Page 11 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



MINUTE BOOK 

 
M.    Adjournment (2:25 p.m.) 
 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Michael Janz, Board Chair  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director  
Governance and Strategic Support  
Services/Corporate Secretary 

       
 

4 
May 5, 2015 

 

Page 12 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
DATE: May 19, 2015 
  
TO: Board of Trustees  
  
FROM:  Trustee Michelle Draper, Caucus Committee Chair 
  
SUBJECT:  Report #11 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meetings Held April 21, May 5 and 

May 12, 2015) 
  
ORIGINATOR:  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director Governance and Strategic Support Services 
  
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Caucus Committee - Section 5.4 

School Act Section 61 
Board Policy FB.BP - Authority for Human Resources Decisions 
Administrative Regulation FBA.AR - Designation, Appointment and Assignment to 
Leadership Positions 

 
 

ISSUE 
The Caucus Committee approved the following recommendations at the April 21, 2015, 
May 5 and May 12, 2015 Caucus Committee meetings respectively:   
 
1. That the Board of Trustees’ budget for 2015-2016 remain at $859,890. 
 
2.   That for the 2015-2016 school year,  the rates for Trustee per annum honoraria, discretionary 

allowances, advance on expenses (travel) allowances and per diem honorarium be adjusted by 
0% rather than tying adjustments to base honorariums to any cost of living adjustments or 
increases provided to exempt management staff. 

 
3. That the following designations for the period September 1, 2015 to August 31, 2016 be 

approved: 
 
 Kent Pharis – Assistant Superintendent 
 Mike Suderman – Assistant Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SS:mmf 

  
 
 

 
 

Page 13 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/574.cfm?page=s03.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779733941
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fb-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fba-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fba-ar/


DATE: May 19, 2015  

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Presentation re Centre for Global Education 

ORIGINATOR: Kathy Muhlethaler, Assistant Superintendent 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Terry Godwaldt, Teacher, Queen Elizabeth High School 

The Board will hear a presentation regarding the Centre for Global Education which grew from 
a teacher’s vision to bring to his students at Queen Elizabeth High School real-time, online 
facilitated learning opportunities.  These virtual projects engage and empower youth as agents 
of change through connecting them to the people and place they are learning about.  Through 
empowering students to act on the world’s greatest challenges from child soldiers in Africa to 
sustainable energy development in Northern Alberta, the Centre for Global Education facilitates 
a learning environment that engages students in the curriculum while preparing them for the 
world that they are going to inherit.    These opportunities have extended to other students in the 
district as the Centre for Global Education now connects with over 100,000 students in 30 
countries. 

 

Page 14 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

D

T

F

S

O

R
S

R
 
 

 
 
 
IS
A
o
 
R
T
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B
L
pr
L
or
in
co
fo

DATE: 

O: 

ROM:  

UBJECT: 

ORIGINATOR

RESOURCE 
TAFF: 

REFERENCE:

SSUE 
Alberta Educ

f Trustees pr

RECOMMEND
That the foll
August 2019

Applied G
Audio 15
Ballet 15-
Ballet Six
Ceramics
Christian
Contemp
Dance 15
Dance Six
Dance Tw
Geometry
Jazz Dan
Study Sk

BACKGROUN
LDCs are cou

rovide stude
LDCs provide

r extend the 
nterests and 
ommunity o
ocus on Prio

May 1

Board 

Darrel 

Locally

R: Mary M

Janice 

: Albert
GA.BP
GAA.B
GK.BP
GKB.A
 

ation require
rior to subm

DATION 
owing LDC
: 
Graphic Ar

5-25-35 
-25-35 
x-year (6Y) 
s (Advanced
n Studies 15
porary Danc
5-25-35 
x-year (6Y)
welve-year (
y 7-8-9  

nce 25-35 
kills And Lea

ND 
urses that are
ents with lear
e unique opp
learning out
abilities of s
r parental in
rities 1 and 2

9, 2015 

of Trustees

Robertson, 

y Developed

Michailides,

Aubry, Dian

a Education 
P - Student P
BP - Deliver
P - Student A
AR - Standar

es that all loc
mission to Alb

Cs be approv

rts 15-25-35 

(previously
d Technique
5-25-35 (pre
ce 25-35 

 (previously
(12Y)  (prev

arning Stra

e developed
rning opport
portunities fo
tcomes in pr
students, sup
nterests. LDC
2. 

1 
 

Superintend

d Courses 

 Assistant S

ne Brunton,

- Guide to E
Programs of 
ry of Student
Assessment, 
rds for Evalu

cally develo
berta Educat

ved for use i

 

y Ballet 7-8-
es) 15-25-35
viously Reli

y Dance 7-8
viously Elem

ategies 7-8-9

or acquired
tunities that 

for students t
rovincial pro
pport District
Cs support th

dent of Schoo

uperintenden

Melody Ko

Education 
Study 
t Programs
Achievemen
uation 

oped courses
tion and imp

in Edmonto

-9) 
5  
igious Studi

8-9) 
mentary Da

9 

and authoriz
complement

to explore a 
ograms. Thes
t alternative 
he District S

ols  

nt, Support f

stiuk 

nt and Grow

 (LDCs) be 
plementation

on Public Sc

ies 15-25-35

nce 1-6) 

zed by schoo
t provincial 
range of inte
se courses ac
programs, a
trategic Plan

for Schools

wth 

approved by
n in schools.

chools (EPS

5) 

ol authoritie
programs of
erests in subj
ccommodate
and address l
n, with a par

y the Board 

SB) until 

s to 
f study. 

bject areas 
e special 
local, 
rticular 

Page 15 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 

 

A
se
co
 
 
 
 
L
th
E
 
T
sc
in
 

 

 

S
re
L
G
 
D
 
R

 

 

O
T
1
2
3
 
C

 
 

 

 
 
 

Alberta Educ
enior high sc
ourses. Thes

further de
foster edu
meet the u

LDCs are app
he case of hi

Education. Th

The LDCs rec
chool, comm
ncludes ensu

are aligne
Learning 
contain a 
the provin
contain up
 

upplementar
esources, wi

LDCs is to be
Growth and G

Descriptions 

RELATED FA

All LDCs
school ad
Other sch
Schools e

OPTIONS 
The following

. Approve t

. Approve t

. Do not ap

CONSIDERAT

LDCs sup
All of the
for 2014-2
LDCs pro
areas, ext
interests a

ation suppor
chool compl
se courses se
evelop and cu
ucational imp
unique need

proved and/o
gh school co
his process i

commended
munity and p
uring that the
ed with the e
(#001/2013)
rationale, ph

ncial require
pdated, curre

ry informatio
ll be made a
e assessed in
GKB.AR Sta

of each cour

CTS 

s in this repo
dministrators
hool districts 
each year. 

g options are
the LDCs as
the LDCs w

pprove the L

TIONS & ANA

pport the Dis
 LDCs recom
2015. 

ovide unique
end the learn
and abilities 

rts the local 
ementary co

erve to: 
ultivate the u
provement a
s of a local c

or renewed o
ourses, the c
is governed b

d for approva
rogram need

ese courses:
elements of I
); 
hilosophy, an
ements and s
ent content. 

on for teache
available to t
n accordance
andards for E

rse, includin

ort were revie
 and central 
in Alberta r

e selected fo
s presented, f
ith amendm
DCs. 

ALYSIS 

strict Strateg
mmended fo

e opportuniti
ning outcom
of students.

2 
 

developmen
ourses which

unique intere
and excellenc
community.

on a four-yea
ourses must 
by the Board

al have been 
ds, as well as

Inspiring Ed

nd general a
tandards; an
     

ers, such as 
teachers on a
e with GK.BP
Evaluation.

ng current en

ewed and re
staff. 

request to ac

or considerat
for submissi
ents, for sub

gic Plan, with
or approval in

es for studen
mes in provin

Many LDC

nt and author
h do not dupl

ests and abil
ce through in

ar cycle by th
also be appr

d of Trustees

revised to e
s provincial 

ducation and 

and specific l
nd 

assessment 
an internal w
P Student A

nrolments, ar

vised collab

cquire many 

tion as they a
ion to Albert
bmission to A

h a particula
n this report

nts to explor
ncial program
Cs support Di

rization of ju
licate provin

lities of stud
nnovation at

the developin
roved and/or
s and Albert

ensure they m
and District

the Minister

learning out

information 
website. Stud
Assessment, A

re provided i

boratively wi

LDCs from 

are deemed t
ta Education
Alberta Educ

ar focus on P
t have Distri

re a range of
ms, and/or ac
istrict altern

unior high sc
ncially autho

dents; 
t the local le

ng school au
r renewed by
ta Education

meet current 
t requiremen

rial Order o

comes align

and possibl
dent progress
Achievemen

in Attachmen

ith District te

Edmonton P

the most adm
n. 
cation. 

Priorities 1 an
ct student en

f interests in 
ccommodate
ative progra

chool and 
orized 

evel; and 

uthority. In 
y Alberta 

n policies.  

student, 
nts. This 

on Student 

ned with 

e 
s for all 

nt and 

nt I. 

eachers, 

Public 

missible: 

nd 2. 
nrolments 

subject 
e special 
amming. 

Page 16 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 

 
N
U
E
S
 
A
A
A
 
JA

NEXT STEPS 
Upon approva
Education for

eptember 20

ATTACHMEN
ATTACHME
APPENDIX I

A:jg 

al of this rec
r approval. I
015. 

TS & APPEN
ENT I Sum
I 201

commendatio
f approved, 

NDICES 
mmaries of L
4-2015 Enro

3 
 

on, the Adm
the Adminis

LDCs Submi
olments for E

ministration w
stration will 

itted For App
Expiring Lo

will submit th
make these 

proval on M
cally Develo

hese LDCs t
LDCs availa

May 19, 2015
oped Course

to Alberta 
able for 

5  
es 

Page 17 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 

1 
 

Summaries of LDCs Submitted for Approval on May 19, 2015 
 
APPLIED GRAPHIC ARTS 15-25-35 
Applied Graphic Arts 15-25-35 is a 15 credit course series that has been previously developed, 
authorized and delivered by EPSB. It is designed for students who are beginning their study of 
Applied Graphic Arts in high school. This LDC expires in August 2015. It is currently being 
delivered in five District high schools and has a total enrolment of 589 students in 2014-2015. 
 
Applied Graphic Arts provides students with opportunities to communicate visually through the 
study of the elements and principles of design, image-making, typography, history of graphic 
design, conceptual problem solving, and critical thinking. The emphasis of Applied Graphic Arts 
is on the student becoming an informed creator of solutions to visual problems.  
 
AUDIO 15-25-35 
Audio 15-25-35 is a 15 credit course that has been previously developed, authorized and 
delivered by EPSB. It is designed for students who are beginning their study of Audio in high 
school. Audio 15 and 25 expire in August 2015; Audio 35 expires in August 2016.   This course 
series is currently being delivered in two District high schools and has an enrolment of 38 
students in 2014-2015. 
 
Audio 15-25-35 provides students with opportunities to create and collaborate in the expression 
of ideas, thoughts and feelings through audio production and to develop a repertoire of skills that 
they can apply into real life situations. Students use various technologies and develop 
understandings of the audio production industry. Students in this LDC series develop audio 
recording techniques, post-production mixing skills and the ability to connect these techniques 
and skills to the benchmarks that exist in the history of popular music.  Audio 15-25-35 provides 
opportunities for students to explore possible career interests and pathways that could capitalize 
on their knowledge, skills and abilities in artistic expression. 
 
BALLET 15-25-35 
Ballet 15-25-35 is a 15 credit course series that has been previously developed, authorized and 
delivered by EPSB. It is designed for students who are beginning their study of Ballet in high 
school. This LDC expires August 2015. It is currently being delivered at Vimy Ridge Academy 
and has an enrolment of 36 students in 2014-2015.  
 
Ballet 15-25-35 provides opportunities for students to pursue dance beyond the Alberta Physical 
Education Program of Studies.  It also offers students the opportunity to study dance as an 
integral part of fine arts and performing arts programs. Ballet 15-25-35 provides students with 
knowledge about ballet and opportunity to develop: 
 physical, social and emotional skills; 
 technical proficiency; 
 contemporary and historical appreciation; and  
 positive self-concepts. 
 
  

ATTACHMENT I 

Page 18 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

2 
 

BALLET SIX-YEAR (6Y) 
Ballet Six-year (6Y) is a course series in which the first three levels (7-8-9) have been previously 
developed, authorized and delivered by EPSB. These three levels expire August 2015, and are 
currently being delivered at Vimy Ridge Academy. The program has been further developed into 
the high school levels to ensure students have opportunities for course stream completion and 
recognition. This LDC is designed for students who are beginning their study of Ballet in junior 
high school.  The 2014-2015 junior high enrolment is 40 students. The three high school levels 
(15-6Y, 25-6Y and 35-6Y) are newly developed, comprise of 15 credits in total, and extend the 
learnings and experiences of the junior high courses. Ballet Six-year (6Y) is intended for 
students who are beginning their study of ballet and have had little or no experience with ballet 
upon entry into the Grade 7 level.  
 
Ballet Six-year (6Y) provides students with opportunities to pursue dance beyond the Alberta 
Physical Education Program of Studies.  It also offers students the opportunity to study dance as 
an integral part of fine arts and performing arts programs. This course series is intended to 
provide students with knowledge about ballet and the opportunity to develop: 
 physical, social and emotional skills; 
 technical proficiency; 
 contemporary and historical appreciation; and  
 positive self-concepts. 
 
CERAMICS (ADVANCED TECHNIQUES) 15-25-35  
Ceramics (Advanced Techniques) 15-25-35 is a 15 credit course series that has been previously 
developed, authorized and delivered by EPSB. It is designed for students who are beginning their 
study of Ceramics (Advanced Techniques) in high school. This LDC expires August 2015. It is 
currently being delivered in four District high schools and has a total enrolment of 200 students 
in 2014-2015. 
 
Ceramics (Advanced Techniques) 15-25-35 provides students with opportunities to develop their 
knowledge, skill and ability in the expression of ideas, thoughts and feelings through ceramics. 
Students develop an awareness of and appreciation for the art of ceramics and the historical 
record of civilization ceramics represents. It also provides students with opportunities to use a 
variety of techniques to resolve design challenges in two dimensional and three dimensional 
works, and to understand the operational maintenance of a ceramics studio.  
 
CHRISTIAN STUDIES 15-25-35 
Christian Studies 15-25-35 is a 15 credit course series that has been previously developed, 
authorized and delivered by EPSB. It expires in August 2015. It is currently being delivered 
at two District schools and has a 2014-2015enrollment of 147 students. 
  
Christian Studies 15-25-35 is designed for both Christian and non-Christian students. It provides 
students with opportunities to explore various aspects of Christianity in a way that 
encourages them to be critical thinkers about religion and the development of their own personal 
faith.  This course series also provides students with opportunities to study Christianity and other 
religious perspectives including theology, ethics and lifestyle.  
  

Page 19 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

3 
 

Christian Studies 15-25-35 meets the required 20 per cent course content addressing a 
comparative study of other major religions. Its aim is to develop respect for and promote 
understanding of individual and minority group differences, and develop an understanding and 
appreciation of the beliefs, customs, practices, literature and traditions of other major religions. 
 
CONTEMPORARY DANCE 25-35 
Contemporary Dance 25-35 is a 10 credit course series that has been previously developed, 
authorized and delivered by EPSB. Contemporary Dance 25-35 is intended for students who 
have had experience with dance and who studied dance as part of their junior high or high school 
program. It is designed for delivery in high school. This LDC expires August 2015. It is 
currently being delivered in three District high schools and has a total enrolment of 116 students 
in 2014-2015. 
 
Contemporary Dance 25-35 provides students with opportunities to pursue dance beyond the 
Alberta Physical Education Program of Studies. This course series also offers students the 
opportunity to study contemporary dance as an integral part of fine and performing arts 
programs. This course series is intended to provide students with knowledge about contemporary 
dance, and the opportunity to develop: 
 physical, social and emotional skills; 
 technical proficiency; 
 contemporary and historical appreciation; and  
 positive self-concepts. 
 
DANCE 15-25-35 
Dance 15-25-35 is a 15 credit course series that has been previously developed, authorized and 
delivered by EPSB. It is designed for students who are beginning their study of Dance in high 
school. This LDC expires August 2015. It is currently being delivered in nine District high 
schools and has a total enrolment of 778 students in 2014-2015. Dance 15-25-35 is intended for 
students beginning their study of dance and who have had little or no experience with dance 
upon entry into the course series.  In response to a request from Alberta Education, EPSB staff 
worked with staff from the Calgary Board of Education and Edmonton Catholic Schools to 
collaboratively revise this course series. 
 
Dance 15-25-35 provides opportunities for students who would like to pursue dance beyond the 
Alberta Physical Education Program of Studies.  It also offers students the opportunity to study 
dance as an integral part of fine and performing arts programs. This course series is intended to 
provide students with the foundations of dance.  It is designed to foster in students an 
understanding and appreciation of, curiosity about, and a lifelong interest in dance.  It is also 
designed to expose learners to a broad range of artistic and aesthetic experiences from a variety 
of dance genres and traditions. In Dance 15-25-35, students will have the opportunity to develop: 
 physical, social and emotional skills; 
 technical proficiency; 
 contemporary and historical appreciation; and 
 positive self-concepts. 
 
  

Page 20 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

4 
 

DANCE SIX-YEAR (6Y) 
Dance Six-year (6Y) is a course series in which the first three levels (7-8-9) have been 
previously developed, authorized and delivered by EPSB.  These three levels expire in August 
2015 and are currently being delivered in seven District junior high schools with a total 
enrolment of 363 students 2014-2015.  The three high school levels (15-6Y, 25-6Y and 35-6Y) 
are newly developed, comprise of 15 credits in total and extend the learnings and experiences of 
the junior high courses. Dance Six-year (6Y) is intended for students who are beginning their 
study of dance and have had little or no experience with dance upon entry into the Grade 7 level.  
 
Dance Six-year (6Y) provides students with opportunities to pursue dance beyond the Alberta 
Physical Education Program of Studies. It also offers students the opportunity to study dance as 
an integral part of fine and performing arts programs. This course series is intended to provide 
students the foundations of dance. It is designed to foster in students an understanding and 
appreciation of, curiosity about, and a lifelong interest in dance.  It is also designed to expose 
learners to a broad range of artistic and aesthetic experiences from a variety of dance genres and 
traditions. In Dance Six-year (6Y), students will have the opportunity to develop: 
 physical, social and emotional skills; 
 technical proficiency; 
 contemporary and historical appreciation; and  
 positive self-concepts. 
 
DANCE TWELVE YEAR (12Y) 
Dance Twelve-Year (12Y) is a course series in which the first six levels (Grades 1-6) have been 
previously developed, authorized and delivered by EPSB.  These six levels expire in August 
2015 and are currently being delivered in five District elementary schools with a total enrolment 
of 927 students in 2014-2015.   The three junior high levels (7-8-9) and high school levels (15-
12Y, 25-12Y and 35-12Y) are newly developed and extend the learnings and experiences of the 
elementary courses. The high school levels (15-12Y, 25-12Y and 35-12Y) comprise 15 credits in 
total.  Dance Twelve-year (12Y) is intended for students who are beginning their study of dance 
and have had little or no experience with dance upon entry into the Grade 1 level.  
 
Dance Twelve-year (12Y) is a course series intended to provide opportunities for students who 
would like to pursue dance beyond the Alberta Physical Education Program of Studies. This 
course series also offers students the opportunity to study dance as an integral part of fine and 
performing arts programs. This course series is intended to provide students the foundations of 
dance. It is designed to foster in students an understanding and appreciation of, curiosity about, 
and a lifelong interest in dance.  It is also designed to expose learners to a broad range of artistic 
and aesthetic experiences from a variety of dance genres and traditions. In Dance Twelve-year 
(12Y), students will have the opportunity to develop: 
 physical, social and emotional skills; 
 technical proficiency; 
 contemporary and historical appreciation; and  
 positive self-concepts. 
 
  

Page 21 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

5 
 

GEOMETRY 7- 8-9  
Geometry 7-8-9 is a course series that has been previously developed, authorized and delivered 
by EPSB. It is designed for students to extend their learning of Geometry in junior high school. 
It expires August 2015. It is currently being delivered in two District junior high schools and has 
a total enrolment of 264 students in 2014-2015. 
 
Geometry 7-8-9 provides students with opportunities to develop logical arguments to support, 
refute, or prove mathematical ideas; analyze mathematical patterns and relationships; use spatial 
reasoning to measure, and to analyze and represent quantities, shapes and objects. The emphasis 
of this course series is on the development of basic logic, analysis and spatial understanding. It is 
designed for those students who would like to develop strong numeracy skills and explore this 
ancient area of mathematics and its applications to modern life. 
 
JAZZ DANCE 25-35 
Jazz Dance 25-35 is a 10 credit course series that has been previously developed, authorized and 
delivered by EPSB. Jazz 25-35 is intended for students who have had experience with dance and 
who have studied dance as part of their junior high or high school program. It is designed for 
delivery in high school. It expires August 2015. It is currently being delivered in two District 
high schools and has a total enrolment of 80 students in 2014-2015.  
 
Jazz Dance 25-35 provides students with opportunities to pursue dance beyond the Alberta 
Physical Education Program of Studies. This course series offers student the opportunity to study 
jazz dance as an integral part of fine and performing arts programs. This LDC series is intended 
to provide students with knowledge about jazz dance, and the opportunity to develop: 
 physical, social and emotional skills; 
 technical proficiency; 
 contemporary and historical appreciation; and  
 positive self-concepts. 
 
STUDY SKILLS AND LEARNING STRATEGIES 7-8-9 
Study Skills and Learning Strategies 7-8-9 is a course series that has been previously developed, 
authorized and delivered by EPSB. It is designed to provide extension opportunities for junior 
high students to focus on their individual study skills and learning strategies. It expires August 
2015.  It is currently delivered in 21 District junior high schools and has a total enrolment of 
1,496 students in 2014-2015. 
 
Study Skills and Learning Strategies 7-8-9 provides students with the opportunity to develop 
specific skills and strategies to become more successful learners. Through explicit instruction, 
guided practice, on-going feedback and self-reflection, students in this course series develop and 
apply a range of strategies to maximize achievement in all subject areas.  
 
Students in this course series have the opportunity to acquire the knowledge, skills and attitudes 
to meet the academic demands of junior high school and to be able to make a successful 
transition to senior high. Study Skills and Learning Strategies 7-8-9 actively involves students in 
their learning and encourages them to take greater responsibility to plan, monitor and self-assess 
for their own progress. 

Page 22 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 

1 
 

2014 -2015 Enrolments for Expiring Locally Developed Courses 
 

Locally Developed Course 
Name/series 

Schools 
Total Student 

Enrollment 2014-
2015 

Applied Graphic Arts 15-25-35 J. Percy Page 589 
Lillian Osborne  
Ross Sheppard 
Strathcona 
Victoria School of the Arts 

Audio 15-25-35 Ross Sheppard 38 
Victoria School of the Arts 

Ballet 15-25-35 Vimy Ridge Academy 36 
Ballet Six-Year (6Y) Vimy Ridge Academy 40 
Ceramics (Advanced Techniques) 
15-25-35 

McNally 200 
Ross Sheppard 
W. P. Wagner 
Victoria School of the Arts 

Christian Studies 15-25-35 Edmonton Christian 147 
Millwoods Christian 

Contemporary Dance 25-35 Eastglen 116 
Victoria 
Vimy Ridge Academy 

Dance 15-25-35 Eastglen 778 
Jasper Place 
Lillian Osborne 
M.E. LaZerte 
McNally 
Queen Elizabeth 
Strathcona 
Victoria School of the Arts 
Vimy Ridge Academy 

Dance Six-Year (6Y) Academy at King Edward 363 
Balwin 
Highlands 
Spruce Avenue 
Victoria School of the Arts 
Vernon Barford 
Vimy Ridge Academy 

Dance Twelve Year (12Y) Afton 927 
Balwin 
Mount Royal 
Victoria School of the Arts 
Virginia Park 

Geometry 7-8-9 Edith Rogers 264 

APPENDIX I 

Page 23 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

2 
 

Stratford 
 

Locally Developed Course 
Name/series 

Schools Student Enrollment 
2014-2015 

Jazz Dance 25-35 Victoria School of the Arts 80 
Vimy Ridge Academy 

Study Skills and Learning 
Strategies 7-8-9 

Alberta School for the Deaf 1,496 
Avalon 
Britannia 
Dan Knott 
Edith Rogers 
Hillcrest 
John D. Bracco 
Kate Chegwin 
Killarney 
Lawton 
Major General Griesbach 
Mary Butterworth 
Ottewell 
Parkview 
S. Bruce Smith 
Spruce Avenue 
Steele Heights 
T. D. Baker 
Westlawn 
Winterburn 

 

Page 24 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
DATE: May 19, 2015 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Standardized School Designs within the Context of Approved Provincial 
Designs (Response to Request for Information #089) 

 

ORIGINATOR: Lorne Parker, Acting Executive Director, Infrastructure 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Josephine Duquette, Terri Gosine, Roland Labbe, Christopher Wright 
 

REFERENCE: March 3, 2015 Board Meeting (Trustee Gibson) 
 
 
ISSUE 
The following information was requested:  Provide information regarding whether standardized 
school designs that incorporate flexible, multi-purpose space are available within the context of 
approved Provincial designs. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Government of Alberta requires all new school projects to conform to the space guidelines 
articulated in the Alberta School Capital Manual - Appendix C: Education Design Standards. 
Multi-purpose space is space that can typically be used for more than one instructional focus or 
program. All school types listed in the Education Design Standards include an allocation for 
classroom(s) categorized as ancillary space which is described as “instructional areas used for 
drama, music, arts and other multi-purposes.” 
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
All school designs, whether commissioned by school jurisdictions or by the Government of 
Alberta on behalf of jurisdictions, allocate space in accordance with the Education Design 
Standards, which includes provision for ancillary classrooms that can serve or be described as 
multi-purpose. There are classrooms categorized as ancillary provided in standard-core school 
designs, which are template school designs developed by the Government of Alberta as part of the 
recent public-private partnership (P3) programs such as Alberta Schools Alternative Procurement 
(ASAP) and Building Alberta Schools Construction Program (BASCP). Standard-core school 
designs will be utilized to deliver recently announced school projects to reduce design timelines 
and deliver school facilities as quickly as possible. Variations to the designs may be considered 
where achievable within design budgets and project delivery timelines. 
 
A number of standard-core design school projects in Alberta have been altered to accommodate a 
school partnership (Attachment I). The Government of Alberta does not fund design alterations or 
construction within the school project budget. Each project requires agreements and financial 
security to be in place for project scope outside of approved school project budgets, prior to 
provincial approval to proceed to construction. 
 

  

1 
 

Page 25 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

https://education.alberta.ca/media/15045919/school%20capital%20manual%20-%20march%202015.pdf


 

KEY POINTS 

• All school designs, whether commissioned by school jurisdictions or by the Government of 
Alberta on behalf of a jurisdiction, allocate space in accordance with the Alberta School 
Capital Manual - Appendix C: Education Design Standards. 

• All school types listed in the Education Design Standards include an allocation for 
classroom(s) categorized as ancillary space, which is described as “instructional areas used 
for drama, music, arts and other multi-purposes.” 

• There are classrooms categorized as ancillary provided in standard-core school designs. 
• Partner space requires additional design considerations, while floor plans for the balance of 

the school can still reflect standard core design. 
• The District would require that additional agreements and funds be in place with partner 

entities prior to proceeding with either the design or construction of partner space. 
 
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I Standard-Core Design Schools Altered for Partner Facilitation 
 
RL:gm

2 

Page 26 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

https://education.alberta.ca/media/15045919/school%20capital%20manual%20-%20march%202015.pdf
https://education.alberta.ca/media/15045919/school%20capital%20manual%20-%20march%202015.pdf


 

ATTACHMENT I 
 
 
Standard-Core Design Schools Altered for Partner Facilitation 
 
Isabel Campbell School K-8 (Grande Prairie Public School District) 
The City of Grande Prairie Partnership Space 
The Grande Prairie Public School District (GPPSD) has developed a partnership with the City of 
Grande Prairie to include a space within the school of approximately 80m2. This space will be 
designed to the City of Grande Prairie requirements and will include a separate entrance from the 
front of the school that will be accessed through a vestibule. There will be four separate office 
spaces that will be used by different user groups throughout the week. 
 
Riverstone K-8 (Grande Prairie Public School District) 
YMCA 
The GPPSD has developed a partnership with the YMCA to include a daycare space within the 
school of approximately 100m2. This space will be designed to the YMCA requirements and will 
include a separate entrance from the front of the school and will be accessed through a vestibule 
with boot racks for the children. 
 
St. Mary School - Beaverlodge K-9 (Grande Prairie Catholic Separate School District) 
Grande Prairie Catholic Separate School District has approved to increase the 430m2 gymnasium 
size by 165m2 to 595m2 and has a partnership with the Town of Beaverlodge to provide a 
Community Kitchen at a total size of 60m2 which will be funded separately. It has been located 
adjacent to the Home Economics Classroom for efficiencies to help with food preparation and 
serving. A separate exterior entrance was provided to avoid public use during school hours. The 
location of the kitchen also offers access to the gymnasium and the main gathering space 
providing flexibility to serve both spaces. The kitchen will be a future development and will be 
built as a shell that will make allowances for architectural, mechanical and electrical 
requirements. 
 
Royal Oaks K-9 (Grande Prairie Catholic Separate School District) 
The City of Grande Prairie Partnership Space 
The City of Grande Prairie requested that the school design accommodate a future 300 square 
meter Field House. The construction budget of $19.7 million does not include the construction of 
the proposed Field House. The school has been designed to accommodate the Field House with 
an additional 32 square meters of circulation space for Field House access from the central 
gathering space, and structural foundations and gymnasium walls are designed to handle the 
future Field House addition. The City of Grande Prairie will need to provide funding for the 
additional circulation space and structure. 
 
École Barrie Wilson School K-9 (Red Deer Public School District) 
Red Deer Public Library 
The community contributed 150m2 to the school’s programmed library area of 240m2, creating a 
library of 390m2 that is shared by the school and the community. 

 

Page 27 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
DATE: May 19, 2015 

 
TO: Board of Trustees 

 
FROM:  Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

 
SUBJECT:  Immunization and Vaccination of District Students 

(Response to Request for Information #096) 
 

ORIGINATOR:  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director, Governance and Strategic 
Support Services 
 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: 

Jody Lundell 

REFERENCE: April 7, 2015 Board Meeting (Trustee Ip) 
School Act, Section 45(8) 

 

 
ISSUE 
Provide information regarding current district and provincial government policies, regulations 
and practice regarding the immunization and vaccination of students. The information should 
include what the District is currently doing to mitigate risks. 

 
BACKGROUND 
In Canada, vaccinations are not mandatory. Only the provinces of Ontario, New Brunswick, and 
Manitoba have legislation requiring students to show proof of vaccination in order to attend 
school. Parents, however, can apply for an exemption to this requirement based on medical, 
religious, or ideological grounds. 
 
The province of Alberta does not have any legislation requiring students to be vaccinated in 
order to attend school. Therefore, no student can be denied entry to school because of their 
immunization status.  
 
Alberta Health Services has the authority to exclude from school or work any students or staff 
who have been exposed to a case of measles and cannot provide acceptable evidence of 
immunity. The exclusion period starts five days after the first exposure to a case of measles to 
21 days after last exposure to a case. This approach aligns with the Public Health Agency of 
Canada’s guidelines and is outlined in Alberta Health Services’ Measles Disease: Q&A 
(Appendix I). 
 
Alberta Health Services also provides information letters about measles and measles 
vaccinations to Alberta school districts. School administrators are expected to share this 
information with parents. A letter to school administration, staff and parents was posted to the 
School News section of SchoolZone in February 2015 (Appendix II).  
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
The Communicable Diseases Regulation of the Public Health Act falls under the authority of 
Alberta Health Services. As a result, neither the School Act nor board policy make reference to 

1 

Page 28 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/Advisories/ne-pha-standard-measle-qa.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/Regs/1985_238.pdf


 
vaccination requirements related to school enrolment or attendance. However, Administrative 
Regulation GICA.AR - Field Trips refers to proof of measles vaccination, stating that, “The 
teacher-leader shall be responsible for ensuring, prior to travel beginning, that proof of measles 
vaccination is collected from students and supervisors travelling to measles endemic areas.” 
(Appendix III).  
 
This regulation reduces the risk that students and staff participating in international field trips to 
measles endemic countries will contract measles and infect others upon their return and aligns 
with Section 45(8) of the School Act which requires a board to ensure that “each student 
enrolled in a school operated by the board is provided with a safe and caring environment that 
fosters and maintains respectful and responsible behaviours”. 
 
Administrative Regulation GICA.AR – Field Trips is currently being revised to include a 
requirement that proof of measles vaccination is collected for students and staff travelling to 
areas experiencing measles outbreaks (e.g. California) in addition to areas identified as measles 
endemic. 
 
This year, detailed information about measles has been shared through the Need to Know News 
(N2KN), including the requirement that staff participating in business travel (e.g. conferences) 
show proof of measles vaccination or immunity vaccination prior to travelling (Appendix IV). 
 
 
KEY POINTS 
 Policy and regulation related to vaccination requirements are the responsibility of Alberta 

Health Services. Neither Alberta Education nor Edmonton Public Schools has the authority 
to require students to show proof of vaccination in order to attend school.  

 If a case of measles is confirmed in the District, school principals and/or central leaders will 
work with Alberta Health Services to ensure that students and/or staff unable to provide 
acceptable evidence of immunity to measles are excluded from school or work. 

 Currently, Administrative Regulation GICA.AR – Field Trips requires proof of measles 
vaccination to be collected from students and supervisors travelling to measles endemic 
areas. This regulation is currently being expanded to include areas experiencing measles 
outbreaks. 
 

  
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
APPENDIX I Alberta Health Services’ Measles Disease: Q & A 
APPENDIX II Alberta Health Services Letter to School Administration, Staff and Parents 
APPENDIX III Administrative Regulation GICA.AR – Field Trips 
APPENDIX IV Need to Know News - Measles Items 

 
SS:il  
 
 
 

2 

Page 29 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gica-ar/


Measles Disease: Q & A 
What causes measles? 

• Measles disease is caused by a virus.
• This virus infects humans, causing measles disease in anyone who is not immunized or

who has not previously had measles.

What are the symptoms of measles? 
• Symptoms of measles are:

o Fever 38.3° C or higher; and
o Cough, runny nose or red eyes; and

• Red blotchy rash appearing three to seven days after fever starts, beginning behind the
ears and on the face and spreading down to the body and then to the arms and legs

Is measles contagious? 
• Measles is extremely contagious.
• The potential spread of measles is a serious health concern.

Am I at risk for measles? 
• If you have not had lab-confirmed measles in the past, or have not received measles

vaccine, you are at risk for illness.  Persons born before 1970 are generally considered 
immune. 

How does measles spread? 
• As an airborne disease, measles is spread through the air.
• Measles can survive up to two hours in the air, even if the contagious person has left the

space.
• Measles can also be spread through coughing and sneezing.

How is measles diagnosed? 
• Measles is diagnosed by a combination of symptoms, history of exposure to a measles

case, and lab testing including blood tests. 
• Lab testing is not needed if you have measles symptoms and were exposed to an

infectious measles case (that was confirmed by lab testing).  

When are people with measles contagious? 
• A person with measles is considered to be contagious from one day before having any

symptoms (which is usually about four to seven days before the rash appears), until four 
days after the appearance of the rash. 

How long is a person with measles contagious? 
• A person with measles is contagious even before showing symptoms!
• From about one day before having any symptoms until four days after the appearance of

the rash, a person is considered contagious.

How long does it take to show signs of measles after being exposed? 
• Symptoms of measles can be seen within seven to 21 days of being exposed to

measles.  If you are at risk for measles, typically you would start seeing symptoms 10 
days after exposure  

• Measles can be life-threatening, and tends to be more severe in infants and adults.

APPENDIX I

Page 30 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

 Measles Disease: Q & A 
 

I have been exposed to measles.  What should I do?  Do I need to stay home? 
• If you have been exposed to measles, please monitor for symptoms of measles. 
• If symptoms do develop, stay home and call Health Link Alberta (1.866.408.5465) 

BEFORE visiting any healthcare facility or provider. 
 

If I was near to one of the measles exposure locations listed in an AHS Health Advisory, 
but wasn’t actually IN the exposure setting, am I at risk? 

• AHS lists very specific locations, times & dates of exposure in all AHS Health Advisories 
related to measles. 

• As noted in those Advisories, only those individuals who were within the very specific 
exposure setting(s), in the noted timeframe(s) on the noted date(s), are at risk. 

• Individuals who were not in the specific setting(s), within the specific timeframe(s), on 
the noted date(s) are not at risk of disease related to that exposure. 

 
My child is not immune to measles, and was in one of the exposure settings listed in one 
of the AHS Health Advisories, regarding measles.  Can he or she get immunized now to 
prevent the disease? 

• After exposure to measles, your unimmunized child must receive vaccine within 72 
hours of exposure to the measles case, to receive prophylactic protection against the 
disease. 

• If your child does not receive vaccine within that 72 hour window, he or she will need to 
wait for a full 21 days after his or her last exposure to the case, to be immunized. 

• If your child does NOT develop measles within that 21 day period, he or she is strongly 
recommended to receive the vaccine at that time. 
. 

If my child is exposed to measles, and is not immune, can he or she be excluded from 
school and/or childcare facilities? 

• Yes: under Alberta's Public Health Act, students or staff at any school or children or staff 
at any childcare facility in Alberta who have been exposed to measles and who are 
susceptible to measles, are required to stay home for the period of time starting five 
days after first exposure to a case of measles through 21 days after the last exposure to 
a case of measles.  

• It’s important that susceptible individuals who have been exposed to measles stay home 
from all public activities during the period of time in which they may develop the disease.  

• By staying home, this greatly reduces the risk of further spread of disease to other 
vulnerable individuals.  
 

How does AHS determine who will be excluded from school or childcare facility?  
• When a case of measles is confirmed in a school or childcare facility, AHS immediately 

works with the case, and the school or childcare facility, to confirm when the case 
attended school or the childcare facility.  

• If the case attended school and/or a childcare facility while infectious, the school and/or 
childcare facility provides AHS with a list of all individuals who may have been exposed 
to this case.  

• AHS cross-references the list against public health immunization records, and identifies 
all those for whom AHS does NOT have a record of two doses of measles vaccine, at 
the appropriate ages.  

• AHS directly contacts exposed adults and the parents/guardians of students and/or 
children for whom AHS does NOT have immunization records. These persons are asked 
to send documentation to AHS of immunizations received elsewhere. (For example, 
official immunization records documenting vaccines administered outside of Alberta).  

Page 31 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/9842.asp�
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/9842.asp�
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/9842.asp�


 
 

 Measles Disease: Q & A 
 

• Anyone who cannot provide acceptable evidence of immunity to measles will be 
considered non-immune, and will be excluded from school and/or the childcare facility.  

• The exclusion period will start five days after first exposure to the case to 21 days after 
last exposure to the case. During this time, the excluded individual is required to stay 
home from school and/or the childcare facility, and from all activities that take place 
outside of home. 

• NOTE: Anyone for whom AHS already has record of adequate immunity on file will not 
be contacted by AHS.  

 
How do I know if my child could be excluded from school and/or childcare facility if he or 
she were to be exposed to a case of measles?  

• Children who have not

• In Alberta, measles vaccine is offered, free of charge, through Alberta’s publicly funded 
immunization program.  

 received two documented doses of measles vaccine, at the 
appropriate intervals on or after the first birthday, can be excluded from school and/or a 
childcare facility, if exposed to a case of measles.  

• Children in Alberta typically receive their 1st dose of measles vaccine at 12 months of 
age, and their second dose between the ages of four and six years.  

• If you are uncertain of your immunization history, or your child’s immunization history, 
please call your local public health office or Health Link Alberta (1.866.408.5465).to 
discuss.  

What should I do if my child/myself have the symptoms of measles?  
• If you have symptoms of measles, do not visit any clinic or hospital.   
• Instead, please stay home, avoid contact with others, and call Health Link Alberta 

(1.866.408.5465) before visiting any health care facility or provider. 

My child has been excluded from school and/or childcare facility. Why must he or she 
stay home? Is it important? 

• Yes, it is important that your child remain home and NOT attend school and/or the 
childcare facility (or any other activity outside of the home) if he or she has been 
excluded, following exposure to measles.  

• If your child is not immune to measles, and has been exposed to measles, your child is 
at risk of developing measles.  

• Your child can develop measles from seven to 21 days after being exposed to measles, 
and your child will actually be contagious before his or her symptoms even show.  

• For this reason, it’s very important that your child stay home from school and/or the 
childcare facility, and from all activities that take place outside of home, during the entire 
period of time in which he or she could develop the disease.  

• By staying home, this greatly reduces the risk of further spread of disease to other 
vulnerable individuals.  

• Remember: measles is an extremely contagious and potentially severe illness. Please 
help reduce the spread of illness.  
 

What should I do if I think I’m sick with measles, but am not sure? 
• Stay home, avoid contact with others, and call Health Link Alberta (1.866.408.5465) 

before visiting any health care facility or provider. 

Can someone get measles more than once?  
• It would be very unusual for an individual to have lab-confirmed measles disease more 

than once. 

Page 32 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

 Measles Disease: Q & A 
 

• Generally, once you have had measles, you are protected against measles for life. 

What are the possible complications from measles?  
• In addition to the fever, rash and other symptoms, about one in three persons with 

measles will have one or more complications, including: 
o diarrhea 
o ear infections (which can lead to permanent hearing loss) 
o pneumonia 
o encephalitis (inflammation of the brain) 
o seizures 

• A very rare but fatal disease of the brain and spinal cord can also develop months to 
years after measles infection.  This fatal disease is called sub-acute sclerosing 
panencephalitis.  

• Measles can also lead to death. 
• Complications are more common among children under five years of age and individuals 

20 years of age and older.  

I’m pregnant. Does measles put my unborn baby at risk? 
• Yes, your unborn baby could be at risk if you are not immune to measles.   
• Measles infection during pregnancy can lead to miscarriage, premature birth, and low 

birth weight. Birth defects are rare, but possible.  
• If you are immune to measles, you will pass measles antibodies to your unborn child, 

mostly in the last third of your pregnancy.  These maternal antibodies will provide some 
protection against measles to your infant, but this protection will disappear over time. 

• Your infant will need to receive his or her own measles vaccines, to be immune to 
measles.   

• Children in Alberta typically receive their 1st dose of measles vaccine at 12 months of 
age, and their second dose between the ages of four and six years.  Both doses are 
needed, to be protected. 

I am pregnant and am not sure if I am immune to measles.  What should I do? 
• Pregnant women who have had two documented doses of measles vaccine are not at 

risk for measles.  
• If you unsure of your immunization history, please call Health Link to discuss. 
• If you are pregnant, are unsure if you are immune, and have been exposed to measles, 

please call Health Link to discuss.   
• If you are not immune to measles, you should receive the measles vaccine as soon as 

possible your baby is born.   (Your cannot receive the measles vaccine while pregnant). 
 

I had a blood test (titre) to check if I am immune to measles. How do I get the results? 
• If your blood test was completed by AHS Public Health, you will receive a phone call to 

advise you of the result. 
• If your blood test was ordered by your doctor, you will need to speak to your doctor’s 

office to find out the result. 
 

Is there a treatment for measles? 
• No, there is no treatment for measles.  
• Measles can be prevented through immunization. 

 
If I have measles, what care do I need? 

• There is no specific treatment for measles. 
Page 33 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

 Measles Disease: Q & A 
 

• Most cases of measles should be treated through self-care, at home.  
• Self-care for measles at home should include rest, drinking plenty of fluids, and taking 

acetaminophen or other non-prescription drugs to relieve fever and other symptoms. 
Avoid using over-the-counter medications containing ASA (aspirin) in children because 
of the risk of Reye syndrome, a rare but potentially fatal disease. 
 

Is there medicine to cure the symptoms of measles? 
• No, there is no medicine to cure measles.   

 
Can antibiotics cure measles? 

• No, there is no medicine to cure measles.  
• Antibiotics are not used to cure or treat measles.   
• Antibiotics may be needed if you develop a bacterial infection like an ear infection or 

pneumonia which can happen as a result of measles, but, antibiotics cannot be used to 
cure or treat measles.   

 
Is measles preventable?  How can I protect myself? 

• Immunization is the best defense against measles. 
• In Alberta, measles vaccine is offered, free of charge, through Alberta’s publicly funded 

immunization program.   
• Children in Alberta typically receive their 1st dose of measles vaccine at 12 months of 

age, and their second dose between the ages of four and six years.   
• If you are uncertain of your immunization history, or your child’s immunization history, 

please call your local public health office or Health Link Alberta (1.866.408.5465).to 
discuss. 

Is there a vaccine available for measles?  
• Yes.  In fact, measles is preventable through immunization with the measles vaccine. 
• In Alberta, measles vaccine is offered, free of charge, through Alberta’s publicly funded 

immunization program. 
• Children in Alberta typically receive their 1st dose of measles vaccine at 12 months of 

age, and their second dose between the ages of four and six years.   
• Anyone uncertain of their immunization history should contact their local public health 

office, or Health Link Alberta, to discuss. 

Who should get the measles vaccine?  
• Children in Alberta should receive their 1st dose of measles vaccine at 12 months of age, 

and their second dose between the ages of four and six years.   
• Measles vaccine is also recommended for individuals born in or after 1970 who have not 

previously had measles disease.  
• Members of the general public born before 1970 are considered immune because they 

would have been exposed to measles which circulated widely before 1970. 
PLEASE NOTE: 

• During measles outbreaks, vaccine eligibility criteria can be expanded. 
• Please visit www.albertahealthservices.ca/measles for information on changes to 

measles vaccine eligibility that were implemented on April 29, 2014, and will remain in 
place for the duration of the current outbreak declaration. 
  

So, if I was born before 1970, I do not require vaccine? 
• Members of the general public born before 1970 are considered immune to measles, as 

these individuals were exposed to measles when it circulated widely before 1970. 

Page 34 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/measles�


 
 

 Measles Disease: Q & A 
 

• Please note: post-secondary students are considered immune, regardless of year of 
birth, only if they have received two documented doses of measles vaccine, at the 
appropriate ages and intervals.  

• Health Care Workers (including post-secondary health care students) are considered 
immune, regardless of year of birth, only if one of the following is confirmed: 

o Two documented doses of measles vaccine at the appropriate time interval, or  
o Laboratory confirmation of measles disease, or  
o Serological evidence of measles immunity (measles IgG positive)  

Do adults need two doses of the measles vaccine?  
• Two doses of measles vaccine are recommended for individuals born in or after 1970, 

who have not previously had measles disease.   
• Members of the general public born before 1970 are considered immune to measles, as 

these individuals were exposed to measles when it circulated widely before 1970. 

Where and at what cost can I get the measles vaccine? 
• In Alberta, measles vaccine is offered, free of charge, through Alberta’s publicly funded 

immunization program. 
• Children in Alberta typically receive 1st dose of measles vaccine at 12 months of age; 

second dose between the ages of four and six years.  You can schedule your child for 
these immunization appointments by calling your local public health office or community 
health centre. 

• PLEASE NOTE: only those individuals who require measles vaccine will be offered 
measles vaccine in Alberta. Measles vaccine is not for sale. 

I was born before 1970 but I want to get the vaccine; can I purchase this vaccine? 
• No, you cannot purchase this vaccine.   
• Measles vaccine is not approved in Alberta for use on individuals who were born before 

1970, with the exception of healthcare workers and post-secondary students.   
• Member of the general public born before 1970 are considered to be immune to measles 

and do not need vaccine. 

My child is late receiving his or her measles vaccine.  Can he or she get it now? 
• Yes, measles vaccine is available by appointment in all Zones, and by additional drop in 

clinics in some Zones, during an outbreak.   
• We recommend you call your local public health office or Health Link Alberta to discuss 

your child’s immunization needs, and access vaccine. 

My child is less than four years of age and has received his or her first dose of measles 
vaccine.  I want him or her to receive the second dose of measles vaccine before the age 
of four. Can this be done? 

• The second dose of measles vaccine is offered to children at age four or older, only. 
• Second doses are not given early for this age group.   
• Children age 12 months to less than four years of age who have received one dose of 

measles vaccine are considered adequately protected for that age range. 
• Second dose is administered to children at age four and older. 

 Who should NOT receive the measles vaccine?  
• Measles vaccine should not be given to: 

o Pregnant women 
o Individuals with weakened immune systems due to disease or medications 

Page 35 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 

 Measles Disease: Q & A 
 

o Individuals who have had severe allergic reactions to previous doses of this 
vaccine or any of its components 

 
Does the measles vaccine cause autism?  

• No – the measles vaccine is safe.   
• All vaccines in Canada go through rigorous testing before being approved for use.   
• The claims that some individuals make about concerns with the safety of the measles 

vaccine are not supported by any scientific research, and in fact, have been debunked, 
proven false. 

Can the measles vaccine cause measles?  
• No, the vaccine cannot cause measles.  The vaccine elicits an immune response 

necessary to provide protection, without causing clinical disease.  
 

How long does it take for the measles vaccine to work?  
• Your body will be protected against measles within two to six weeks of being immunized. 
• If you come in contact with measles within that two to six week window, the vaccine can 

still provide you with protection. 
• Remember: without two doses of measles vaccine at the appropriate ages and intervals, 

you are not fully protected against measles.   

Does the measles vaccine fully protect me? 
• Two doses of measles vaccine, at the appropriate ages and intervals, is required to be 

considered immune to measles. 
• One dose of measles vaccine provides approximately 95% protection.  
• The second dose of vaccine is required for 99% immunity. 
• Everyone’s body responds slightly differently to vaccine, so, no vaccine is 100% 

effective; however, without vaccine, you are 100% at risk. 
 

 
 
 

- 30 - 

Page 36 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



Measles and Travel    February 2, 2015

To School Administration, Staff and Parents: 

As spring holidays approach, we know that many families have vacations planned, both within and 
outside of Canada.  

Travelling increases your family’s risk of exposure to many different diseases, including measles. 
Measles is a very real threat in many parts of the world, including as close to home as California, where 
a measles outbreak is currently ongoing. 

It is always important to ensure all your immunizations are up to date before you travel. 

If you are travelling to an area where a measles outbreak is currently active (including, but not limited 
to, California), it is very important to ensure all travellers have received the right number of doses, for 
their age, of the MMR vaccine – the vaccine that protects against measles - before departing on the 
trip. Children six months to six years old may require an earlier dose of vaccine than provided in the 
routine schedule, anyone born in or after 1970 should ensure they have had two doses of vaccine, and 
adults born before 1970 should have one dose. 

If you are uncertain whether you and/or your children need the MMR vaccine before travelling, please 
call your local community health centre to discuss.  If you are not sure how to reach your local 
community health centre, you can also call Health Link Alberta at 1.866.408.5465. 

Please remember: 

Measles is a serious disease: 
In addition to fever, rash and other symptoms, about one in three persons with measles will have one or 
more complications, including diarrhea, ear infections (which can lead to permanent hearing loss), 
pneumonia, inflammation of the brain and seizures. Measles can also lead to death.  
Although complications are more common among children under five years of age, individuals 20 years 
of age and older and those with compromised immune systems, even healthy people are a risk of 
complications.  In fact, about one in ten people with measles need hospital treatment.  

Measles is extremely contagious: 
Measles disease is caused by a virus that spreads easily through the air. When someone with measles 
has been in a room, the virus can survive in the air for up to two hours after the person has left and 
infect people who simply breathe the air during that time. People who have never been vaccinated or 
who have never had measles disease are 90 per cent likely to get sick with measles, if exposed to the 
measles virus.  

APPENDIX II

Page 37 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Measles can be prevented with vaccine: 
Two doses of the MMR vaccine, at the appropriate ages and intervals, are required to be protected 
against measles. One dose of MMR vaccine provides approximately 95% protection. The second dose 
of MMR vaccine is required for 99% protection.   Although everyone’s body responds slightly differently 
to vaccine, we do know that without any vaccine, you are 100% at risk.  
 
Be sure you and your family are protected.  For more information on measles disease and the MMR 
vaccine, please visit www.immunizealberta.ca or call Health Link Alberta at 1.866.408.5465.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dr. Richard Musto      Dr. Christopher Sikora 
Medical Officer of Health     Medical Officer of Health 
Alberta Health Services     Alberta Health Services 
Calgary Zone       Edmonton Zone 
 
 
Dr. Albert de Villiers      Dr. Wadieh Yacoub 
Medical Officer of Health     Medical Officer of Health 
Alberta Health Services     First Nations Inuit Health Branch 
North Zone-West, North Zone Lead    Health Canada 
 
Dr Deena Hinshaw      Dr. Vivien Suttorp 
Medical Officer of Health     Medical Officer of Health 
Alberta Health Services     Alberta Health Services 
Central Zone       South Zone 
 
 

 

Page 38 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

http://www.immunizealberta.ca/


CODE:  GICA.AR 

TOPIC: Field Trips 

OBJECTIVE 

To articulate the Superintendent of Schools’ requirements for the organization, supervision, 
documentation and approval of field trips to ensure a focus on student learning outcomes and the safety 
of students.   

DEFINITIONS 

Field trip is a school activity that occurs outside the boundaries of the student's school, designed to 
support the student in:  

• learning specific curricular outcomes for courses that the student is enrolled in; or
• co-curricular activities such as athletics or student leadership.

Note: For the purposes of this regulation, off-campus courses and work-study programs as outlined in 
Administrative Regulation GAA.AR – Off-Campus Education, are not considered to be field trips. 

High-risk activity is an activity listed by our district insurance broker as one that has contributed to the 
most serious claims across Canada. 

Parent(s) includes all legal guardian(s) or independent students. 

Principal includes the: 
• principal of a school; or
• director of Metro Continuing Education.

Student(s) includes funded children in Early Education, Early Learning and Kindergarten Programs as 
well as student(s) as defined within the Alberta Education Funding Manual.  

Supervisor includes any staff member or registered volunteer, as per FBCE.BP Volunteers – 
Registration and Records Checks and FBCE.AR Volunteers – Registration and Records Checks 
accompanying students on a field trip. 

Teacher-leader is a teacher from the school or an instructor with Metro Continuing Education 
designated by the principal to be in charge of the field trip.   

RESPONSIBILITY 

1. District Support Services shall be responsible for providing advice and assistance to support
principals in meeting all requirements of this regulation and exercising due diligence on behalf of the
District to ensure student safety.  District Support Services shall:

• identify best practices, and develop common forms, templates and processes to support
schools in meeting the requirements of this regulation;

EFFECTIVE DATE: (05-07-2013) 

ISSUE DATE: (27-08-2013) 

REVIEW YEAR: (07-2018) 

Administrative Regulation 

GICA.AR -- Page 1 of 7

APPENDIX III

Page 39 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



• review both out-of-province field trip and high-risk field trip packages on behalf of the 
Assistant Superintendent; and 

• receive, for inclusion in the database, signed checklists for any in-province, low risk 
overnight field trips. 
 

2. Principals shall be responsible for: 
• ensuring adequate preparation and supervision for all field trips; 
• ensuring all district approved field trip forms and templates are used in preparing the field 

trip package; 
• designating a teacher-leader to be in charge of each field trip on the Principal’s behalf to 

ensure planning, supervision, communication, and approval is in compliance with this 
regulation; 

• providing to parents a Field Trip Waiver Request: Notice to Parents when a third party 
requires a waiver to be signed by parents; 

• approving each proposed field trip; and 
• providing final approval for  in-province, low risk overnight field trips on behalf of the 

school or submitting completed packages for both out-of-province field trips and high-risk 
field trips to District Support Services. 

 
3. Principals can deny any child access to a particular activity.  When a principal denies access to a 

field trip they must provide the rationale to the parents.   
   

4. Assistant Superintendents shall be responsible for: 
• approving all field trips involving high risk activities; and  
• approving all out-of-province field trips. 

 
5. The Superintendent of Schools reserves the right to cancel or alter a field trip at any time.  No 

request for compensation will be entertained. 
 
REGULATION 
 
1. Each field trip shall have received the appropriate level of vetting and approval, including where 

appropriate, the Assistant Superintendent’s, prior to: 
• any information being sent home to parents or commitments being made to students and 

parents; 
• any contracts being signed, or commitments being made, to vendors or service providers;  
• any funds being expended; and 
• any money or deposits being collected from, or on behalf of, students and or parents. 

 
2. For all in-province low risk overnight field trips, the Principal shall review arrangements and 

document approval of the field trip by completing, dating and signing the Overnight Field Trip 
Checklist: In-Province/Low Risk and attaching all information provided to parents.  A copy of the 
completed and signed checklist shall be submitted to District Support Services, on behalf of the 
Assistant Superintendent, at least one week prior to the field trip. 

 

GICA.AR -- Page 2 of 7 
 

Page 40 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



3. For field trips involving high-risk activities, and for all out-of-province field trips, the Principal shall 
review arrangements and document approval of the field trip by completing, dating and signing the 
Overnight Field Trip Checklist: Out-of-Province and/or High Risk.  The checklist and all 
information to be provided to students and parents shall be submitted to District Support Services on 
behalf of the Assistant Superintendent, as follows: 

• a minimum of six weeks prior to departure for field trips involving either high-risk 
activities or for out-of-province field trips within Canada and the continental United 
States; and 

• a minimum of six months prior to departure for out-of-province field trips involving 
travel outside of Canada and the continental United States.  

 
A. SUPERVISION: 

 
1. No teacher shall be assigned instructional time specifically to organize field trips.   

 
2. Each field trip shall have a designated teacher-leader in charge.  The teacher-leader shall be in 

attendance for the duration of any high risk; overnight; or out-of-province field trips.  For all 
other field trips, when a principal deems it appropriate, the teacher-leader may have an alternate 
assigned to be present on a field trip.   
a. The teacher-leader on all out-of-province trips shall provide a daily update by phone or email 

to District Support Services. 
b. The teacher-leader shall provide a report by phone or email to District Support Services in 

the event of unusual circumstances resulting in a major modification to the itinerary of the 
field trip.  

c. The teacher-leader shall immediately report any serious injury, ambulance call out, or 
hospital visit to: 

• District Support Services during business hours; or  
• Security Services after business hours. 

d. Whether or not the teacher-leader is present on a field trip, the teacher-leader must always 
have overall responsibility for the field trip to ensure compliance of the field trip with this 
regulation.  The teacher-leader shall ensure that supervision is available at all times and that 
supervisors are prepared to deal with any emergencies that may arise.  The supervisory 
arrangements shall consider:  

• the age, maturity, needs and ability levels of the students; 
• the inherent risk of the activity; and 
• the circumstances of the particular activity. 

e. The teacher-leader shall be familiar with, and conduct a safety assessment of, the proposed 
site of the field trip. 

f. The teacher-leader shall ensure that training, preparation, orientation and expectations are 
provided to all students and supervisors.   

g. The teacher-leader shall be responsible for ensuring, prior to travel beginning, that: 
• proof of measles vaccination is collected from students and supervisors travelling to 

measles endemic areas; and 
• proof of additional medical coverage is collected from students and supervisors for 

international trips. 

GICA.AR -- Page 3 of 7 
 

Page 41 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



h. The teacher-leader shall be responsible for ensuring that the following items are present and 
readily available on field trips:  

• list of student participants;  
• phone contact numbers of parents;  
• Alberta Health Care numbers of participants;  
• information regarding medication and medi-alert needs of participants; and 
• an appropriately equipped portable first aid kit.  Occupational Health and Safety Code 

provides information on the contents of first aid kits (see Schedule 2, Table 3) and the 
type of kit required relative to the number of participants (see Schedule 2, Table 5) 
can be found by following the link.  

 
3. Where a principal deems it appropriate or where it is required by law, supervision shall include 

individuals suitably trained in first aid.  Staff can access first aid training from a vendor approved 
by Purchasing and Contract Services.  Alternatively, first aid training can be obtained from 
another vendor.  In this case, the principal is required to ensure that any vendor not on the 
approved district list has appropriate training, insurance and certification, and is offering a course 
approved by Alberta Workplace Health and Safety. 

 
4. On overnight field trips involving students of both genders, male and female supervisors shall be 

present, and on other field trips when necessary. 
 

5. For high-risk activities, competent instruction and supervision in these activities are mandatory. 
Competence may be established by virtue of a certificate from a governing body for activities 
such as skiing and canoeing.  In areas where certificates are not issued, competency may be 
recognized by virtue of experience and demonstrated expertise in the activity. 

 
6. A principal may authorize persons other than teachers to provide supervision or instruction when 

warranted by the nature of the specific field trip, to meet the safety requirements of this 
regulation.   

 
7. Only assigned teachers and authorized supervisors shall accompany students on a field trip.  

Volunteers must be approved as a supervisor by the Principal and are required to complete the 
following forms, as stated in GBCE.AR – Volunteers – Registration and Records Checks: 

• Volunteer Registration Form; 
• Police Information Check; and 
• where required, Volunteer Driver Form. 

 
8. Where a school has only one or two qualifying students for a field trip, a teacher from another 

Edmonton Public School which is also sending students, may agree, with their principal’s 
approval, to be designated as the teacher-leader for the field trip and assume supervision of the 
one or two students.  This could occur for field trips such as provincials for badminton, 
wrestling, or a student leadership conference.  A Field Trip Notice: Alternative Supervision Form 
must accompany the Field Trip Information and Parental Consent Form. The requirement for 
adherence to all other sections of this regulation remains.  In situations where a school is sending 
three or more students on a field trip, it is expected that a teacher-leader from the school be 
assigned. 

GICA.AR -- Page 4 of 7 
 

Page 42 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
9. When necessary, principals are expected to seek advice and assistance from experts in planning 

field trips and in assessing risk.  The following are recommended personnel and publications: 
a. Personnel: 

• District Support Services 
• Human Resources 
• District insurance contact (Financial Services) 
• District General Counsel 
• other senior staff 

b. Publications: 
• Safety Guidelines for Physical Activity in Alberta Schools 
• Occupational Health Code 2009 
• The Canadian Association for Health, Physical Education and Recreation 

 
B. FIELD TRIP CONSENT FORMS:  

 
1. Prior to each field trip, written parental consent shall be obtained for each participating student.  

The Field Trip Information and Parental Consent and Authorization Form is available for 
schools on the District intranet under District Support Services. 

 
2. In order to ensure informed consent, the teacher-leader must utilize the standard Parental 

Consent and Authorization Form as prepared by the District, and provide parents the following 
information in writing: 

• purpose or educational goal of the field trip relative to the specific learner outcomes 
of the course the student is enrolled in; 

• proposed itinerary; 
• description of the activities or events proposed; 
• an indication of extraordinary or unusual hazards that may be encountered on the 

field trip; 
• safety precautions in place to deal with activities involving risk, including, when 

appropriate, the name of the designated first-aider and the expiry date of their 
certificates; 

• emergency procedures to be followed in the event of injury, illness or unusual 
circumstances; 

• method(s) of transportation to be used; 
• arrangements for supervision; and  
• cost to the student. 

 
3. Parental consent forms shall: 

• include consent from parents authorizing the supervisors to arrange for necessary 
medical treatment;  

• include contingency plans in the event of cancellation, adverse weather and road 
conditions, or other conditions that may require a change to the original itinerary; 

• specifically require parents, or a qualified instructor, to indicate a child's skill level in 
swimming, skiing or snowboarding and in any high-risk activity.  For skiing and 

GICA.AR -- Page 5 of 7 
 

Page 43 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



snowboarding, the District Levels of Ability - Ski Form or Levels of Ability - 
Snowboarding Form must be used;  

• provide for parents to be able to consent to particular activities, and withhold consent 
with respect to others in relation to the same field trip;  

• include information that the Superintendent of Schools reserves the right to cancel or 
modify any trip and that no request for compensation will be entertained; and 

• include notification to parents that photos or videos of students attending or 
participating in a field trip, that is open to the general public, may be taken by 
participants, others, or the media, and that Edmonton Public Schools cannot control 
or prevent the further distribution of these images.   

 
4. Special provisions may be required when seeking permission from parents if language, literacy, 

or cultural barriers exist.  
 

5. For school activities that involve more than one trip outside the boundaries of the school such as 
swimming lessons, physical education classes, outdoor education classes, and interschool sports 
within the league, a single parental consent will suffice if the information to the parent includes 
both a schedule and dates of all activities. Should any of these be high-risk activities, separate 
field trip parental consents must be obtained.  

 
6. A single parental consent will suffice for scheduled and unscheduled walking field trips in the 

neighbourhood of the school. 
 

7. Supervisors should not entertain major deviations to the proposed itinerary of any field trip once 
parental consent has been received. 

 
C. FIELD TRIP RECORDS: 

 
If the Principal believes that the records pertaining to a field trip might be important because of an 
incident that occurs on the field trip, then the Principal must retain those records in accordance with 
CN.AR - Creation, Use and Maintenance of District Information. 
 
The schools shall keep a record for two years of each field trip, which will include: 

• principal authorization;  
• Assistant Superintendent’s authorization, where required;  
• parental consent; 
• all information provided to parents;  
• any copies of passports or immunization records, where required;  
• list of participating students; and  
• list of supervisors. 

 
REFERENCES 
CN.AR - Creation, Use and Maintenance of District Information 
DEAC.AR - Chartering of Buses by Schools 
DEBA.AR - School-Purchased Vehicles 
DIBA.AR - Liability Insurance 

GICA.AR -- Page 6 of 7 
 

Page 44 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



FBCE.BP - Volunteers – Registration and Records Checks 
FBCE.AR - Volunteers – Registration and Records Checks 
GA.BP - Student Programs of Study 
GAA.AR - Off-Campus Education 
Alberta Occupational Health and Safety Code – Schedule 2, Tables 3 and 5 
District Support Services: 

− Field Trip Information and Parental Consent Form  
− Field Trip Waiver Request: Notice to Parents 
− The Field Trip Information and Parental Consent and Authorization Form – District Services 
− Overnight Field Trip Checklist:  In-Province/Low Risk 
− Overnight Field Trip Checklist: Out-of-Province and/or High Risk 
− Levels of Ability - Ski Form  
− Levels of Ability - Snowboarding Form 

Purchasing and Contract Services 
 
 
 

GICA.AR -- Page 7 of 7 
 

Page 45 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



APPENDIX IV 

Need to Know News on Measles Immunization 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 
 

Page 46 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 

 

 

2 
 

Page 47 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 

 

3 
 

Page 48 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015



 
DATE: May 19, 2015 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Bereavement 

ORIGINATOR: Angela Anderson, Managing Director, Human Resources 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Sandy Boyce 

REFERENCE: FM.BP Acknowledgement of Deaths and Bereavements 
 FM.AR Deaths and Bereavements 
 
 
Mrs. Wilna Conchita Dolezal passed away on May 3, 2015, at the age of 53 years. Mrs. 
Dolezal was hired to the District in 2009, as a Speech Language Pathologist at Evansdale 
School’s Early Education site.  She remained at Evansdale School until she took a leave of 
absence for health reasons in May 2014.  Mrs. Dolezal is survived by her husband, Lee, step-
daughter, Michelle and her daughter, Gianna. 
 
A celebration of her life was held on Sunday, May 17, 2015.   
 

  
 
 
AA:sb 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 49 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

https://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fm-bp/
https://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fm-ar/


 
DATE: May 9, 2015 

 
TO: Board of Trustees  

 
FROM:  Student Trustee Johannah Ko 

 
SUBJECT:  Student Trustee Update 

 
REFERENCE: November 25, 2014 Board Report – 2014-2015 Student Trustee Role and 

Responsibilities Statement 
 
 
On May 4th, I visited Edmonton Christian North East School. I met with two grade six classes 
compounding upon a previous visit from Trustee Draper. The visit was actually initiated by a 
student who emailed Trustee Draper inquiring about further student engagement. This was an 
opportunity to share the Student Trustee program and discuss how it could involve younger 
students more comprehensively. We also talked about how various factors could impact other 
students in the district and how they themselves had been affected. 
 
I was invited along with Trustee Draper to attend Get Loud for Mental Health Day Edmonton. 
There were students from all levels of education at the event. There were students from nine 
schools present:  Belmont, Homesteader, Fraser, Highlands, John D. Bracco, Bannerman, 
Eastglen and Jasper Place as well as students from the Nellie McClung Program. Students were 
encouraged to develop all aspects of mental health; communication, exercise, community, being 
centered, and setting personal goals. 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 50 of May 19, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package - Updated as of May 19, 2015

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/november25/07-Report5oftheCaucusCommittee-FromtheMeetingHeldNovmber4,2014-StudentTrustee.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/november25/07-Report5oftheCaucusCommittee-FromtheMeetingHeldNovmber4,2014-StudentTrustee.pdf

	Agenda
	01 - DRAFT Board Meeting Minutes - April 28, 2015
	02 - DRAFT Board Meeting Minutes - May 5, 2015
	03 - Report 11 of the Caucus Committee
	04 - Presentation re Centre for Global Education
	05 - Locally Developed Courses - Revised
	06 - Standardized School Designs Within the Context of Approved Provincial - Response to RFI 089
	07 - Immunization and Vaccination of District Students - Response to RFI 096
	08 - Bereavement
	09 - Student Trustee Update



